
Brookfield BoE and Town of Brookfield 
100 Pocono Road, Brookfield, CT 06804 

Ph : 203-775-7613 ; jgay@brookfieldct.gov 
 

Time & Attendance Software 
B-20-01 - Addendum #1 

Due August 20, 2019 at 11am 
Answers to Questions received as of 8/6/19 

1. Page 1 of the attached indicates we can obtain specifications from your office via 
email.  Are there further specifications than the attached?  Answer : No 

 
2. Please indicate the number of Collective Bargaining Agreements for the BoE and the 

town.  Answer: BoE has four, Town has three 
 

3. Does the BoE use a scheduling tool (sub finder system)? Which vendor? Answer: Yes, 
Frontline 

 
4. Are the accruals of vacation and sick time currently calculated in MUNIS? Answer: 

Town =Yes, The BoE is using Frontline 
 

5. Are you looking to support time off requests in the system? Answer: Town = Yes ; BoE = 
No 
 

6. Has the BoE or Town viewed a demonstration of a Time and Attendance system in the 
past 12 months?  Which vendors? Answer: We are withholding that information at this 
time 
 

7. The attached document indicates a go-live of “on or about Jan 1, 2020”.  It is our 
experience, a project of this scope is not possible in that time frame given an award of 
Sept 6, 2019 at the earliest.  Have you been advised by a Time and Attendance vendor 
that 3 months is a feasible project timeline? Answer: No. We are flexible to a realistic 
time frame for an accurate assessment, install and rollout. 

  
8. On page 6 of the RFP it states “All information shall be entered in ink or by typewriter. 

Mistakes may be crossed out and corrections inserted before submission of your bid. The 
person signing the bid shall initial corrections in ink. Corrections 'and/or modifications 
received after the closing time specified will not be accepted.” 

• Would the BoE and Town of Brookfield consider a printed word document as an 
acceptable submission?  Answer : Yes 
 



9. Has the BoE or the Town of Brookfield had any previous vendor demonstrations or 
presentations on the solution requested, prior to the release of this RFP? If yes, please 
provide the vendor(s), name(s) and product names. Answer : See answer to Q. 6 above 
 

10. Will vendor(s) receive a copy of all questions and clarifications related to this RFP? 
Answer : All questions received prior to 5 days from closing will be posted as publicly 
posted addendums.  
 

11. Of the 160 employees listed in the RFP for BoE, how many of the employees would fall 
into the following categories:  
 

• Full-Time: 125 
• Part-Time:   35 
• Temporary:   0 

 
12. Are any of the hourly employees for the BoE paid on an annualized basis even if they 

only work during the school year?    Example:  Bob still gets a paycheck in June even 
though he doesn’t actually have any work hours in June. Answer:  No 

 
13. Are any of the employees for the BoE contracted, or required to have a certain amount of 

hours required to be worked in a week?  Answer: No 
 

14. Would the BoE desire the RFID clocking terminals to have Power-over-Ethernet (PoE) or 
Wi-Fi functionality?  Answer: Both options would like to be explored as part of the 
overall best value analysis. 
 

15. Would the BoE and the Town of Brookfield provide specifications and more information 
on the type of RFID cards currently being used by all employees?  Answer: Town Hall 
employees (~50-60) are issued  iClass fobs.  All BoE employees are issued picture ID 
cards that are believed to be standard proximity.   
 

16. Does the Town of Brookfield wish to allow salaried exempt employees the ability to fill 
out electronic time sheets within the time and attendance system?  Answer: Yes 

• If so, how many employees would have this capability? Answer: An estimated 45 
salaried employees.   
 

17. Would a RFID capable clock be needed for the few town employees currently using 
RFID badges?  Answer : Unknown at this time.  

• If so, does the Town of Brookfield desire the clocking terminals to have Power-
over-Ethernet (PoE) or Wi-Fi functionality? Answer : Unknown at this time.   
Answer: Both of these options, along with any other similar options, would expect 
to be part of the hardware assessment in deciding what is the best value 
arrangement for accomplishing the task.  Read the specification. 
 

18. Does the Town of Brookfield have a need to track occurrences through a point system 
when it comes to attendance policy management?  Answer : Not at this time.  This may 



be an add on in future years. 
 

19. Is there a need for detailed ACA reporting for either the BoE or the Town of Brookfield?  
Answer : BoE = No , Town = No 
 

20. Is there a need for FMLA case management for either the BoE or the Town of 
Brookfield?   Answer : Town and BoE = No 
 

• How many would be eligible for FMLA?  Answer : N/A 
 

21. Does the BoE or Town of Brookfield have a need for employees to perform clocking 
operations from a mobile solution? Answer : Read the specification detail under Town in 
discussing Parks and Beaches, along with after hours dispatch to specific locations, i.e. 
Fire Marshall. The BoE anticipates all employee’s reporting to one of the four schools or 
the administrative offices. 
 

22. Can you confirm that no sample contract was attached? Answer: No sample contract was 
attached.  A contract will be negotiated with the awarded vendor at the time of the award. 
 

23. A Certificate of Insurance naming the Town/BoE can only be supplied upon an award 
and signed contract.  Is that acceptable? Answer: Yes 
 

24. Is it desired for the system to be installed on your servers (Customer Hosted)? Or is it 
desired to have a cloud based solution installed on our servers (Vendor Hosted)?   
Answer:  Unknown at this time. Both options would like to be explored as part of the 
overall best value analysis.  Read the detail specifications. 
 

25.  Including Full time, part time, and seasonal staff how many employees will need to be 
tracked on the system? is 300 accurate? Answer: See answer to Q.11 above.  Total 
numbers are listed in the specifications.  
 

26. How many supervisors, managers, administrators will need access to the system to make 
approvals, edits or run reports? Answer: Town has an estimated 20 Department Heads , 
BoE has an estimated 15-20 persons. 
 

27. How many time clocks should we include in our proposal? Answer: Unknown at this 
time.  Various hardware options would like to be explored as part of the overall best 
value analysis.  Read the detail specifications 
 

28. Is it desired for the time clocks to be HID proximity? Or Biometric? Answer: A biometric 
option is not expected.  Read the detail specifications. 
 

29.  If proximity is preferred are the current HID cards Indala, iCLASS, or standard 
Proximity? Answer: See Q15 above. Various options would like to be explored as part of 
the overall best value analysis.  Read the detail specifications 
 



30.  Will a flat file import/export be acceptable for the interface to Munis? Answer: No 
 

31. Does the Town/BOE have an FTP site where new hire/employee demographic 
information can be sent out of Munis to the FTP site? (this would allow for scheduling a 
sync of any employee changes in Munis into the new Time & Attendance system) 
Answer: No.  As an FYI – Munis is Saas / Cloud based. 
 

32. Will Advanced scheduling be included in this scope of work? (usually for police and or 
fire… Advanced scheduling is defined as employees who need to do Shift swaps, 
vacation bidding, or having scheduling rules in the system which automatically assign the 
correct employees to open shifts)  Answer: Not at this time, this may be added on in 
future years 
 

33. If Advanced scheduling is needed.. how many employees should be licensed for it? 
Answer: N/A 
 

34.  Is FMLA Case Management required? Defined as the new time & attendance system 
automating the process of requesting FMLA leave, allowing employees to fill out 
required forms directly in the new Time & Attendance system, and tracking the open 
case, automatically alerting employees/managers when an employee is due back or 
running out of FMLA time? Answer: No 
 

35. Is it desired for employees to punch in/out from a computer or smart phone? Answer: 
Mixed & Unknown at this time. Various options would like to be explored as part of the 
overall best value analysis.  Read the detail specifications 
 

36. Is it desired for employees to request time off electronically at a computer or smart 
phone? Answer: No 
 

37. Did the Town /BOE view demonstration prior to the release of this RFP? Answer: See 
answer to Q. 6 above 
 

38. If so which vendors provided a demo? Answer: See answer to Q. 6 above 
 

39. Our standard contract term is 5 years, will that be acceptable for this project? Answer: 
The term may be negotiated upon award and contract. A multi-year arrangement is 
anticipated.   

 
End of Addendum #1 

 
Jerry Gay, Purchasing Agent 
BoE & Town of Brookfield 
8/6/19 
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